
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 
 

 
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
  AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

              
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

September 20, 2011 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
Commissioners 
a. Approval of Final Capital Improvement Plan – 2011- 2016 
b. Appreciation Letters for 9/11 Memorial 
c. Canvassing Board Appointment    
Facilities 
d. Contract Amendment w/Cascade Fire Protection Co. 
e. Authorization to Release Retainage Funds to G2 Commercial Construction, Inc. 
Human Services 
f. Contract w/DSHS, Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery   
Personnel 
g. Trainer Contract w/S Perry  
Planning 
h.   Certificate of Appreciation 
Prosecuting Attorney 
i.    Amendment to Collective Bargaining Agreement w/Teamsters Local 839 (Roads) 
Sheriff 
j. Personal Services Contract w/Mel’s Inter-City Collision for Auto Body Repair   

   
9:05 AM Public Hearing 
   

Short Plat Vacation – SPV 11-03 - Shuttleworth 
 

Scheduled Business:     
 
Discussion of Architectural Firm Recommendation – L Small     

 
  Executive Session – Potential Litigation – R Brown   
 
  Unscheduled Visitors  

   Board Assignment Update 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, pleaseclick on highlighted area



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, September 20, 2011, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; County Engineer Malcolm 
Bowie; DPA Ryan Brown; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Jackie Hill, Clerk’s 
Office; Clark Posey, Planning; Rosie Sparks, Auditor; Dean Docken, Facilities; Erhiza Rivera 
and Nick Kooiker, Treasurer’s Office; Steve Becken, Public Works Manager; Central Services 
Manager Randy Reid; Lisa Small, Commissioners’ Office.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of September 13, 2011 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “x”.  
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Central Services 

a. Authorization to Proceed With Transitional Upgrade of the County Telephony 
Systems 

b. Authorization to Purchase Annual Maintenance for Fujitsu Scanners 
Clerk 

c. Authorization to Purchase File Folders 
Commissioners 

d. Payment Authorization for Wireless Canopy Installation @ Fairgrounds    
Fairgrounds 

e. Lease Agreement w/Gary Kendall for Annual Angus Auction 
Human Services 

f. Transfer of Real Property to Greater Columbia Behavioral Health     
g. Grant Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services 



 - 2 - 

h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504 
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 560 

Juvenile 
k. Contract Amendment w/DSHS Through Juvenile Accountability Block Grant    
l. Agreement w/DSHS for Evidence Based Expansion 

Office of Public Defense 
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136   
n. Terminating District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins 
o. District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins  
p. Compensation Authorization for J Celski for Indigent Defense Services 

Parks 
q.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000 

Planning 
r. Short Plat Vacation – SPV 11-02  

Public Works 
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500 
t. Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Kennewick Irrigation District 
u. Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District  

Sheriff 
v. Purchase Authorization for Camera from EyeOn Manufacturing, LLC 
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 
x. Salary Request Statement 

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 
Benton City Economic Development Council  
 
Randy Rutledge, Benton City EDC gave an update and briefly discussed the following: 
 

 I-82 Study completed by DNR; discussed options and potential purchases; provided 
the Board with a copy 

 New construction - 9600 sq. ft. commercial building being built 
 Offer on Port property coming next week 
 Plaza behind Post Office is expanding 
 Old theatre being converted into event center  
 Business classes being offered by Council of Governments 
 Housing market is moving 

 



 - 3 - 

Boundary Review Board – BRB 11-05 
 
Clark Posey said Benton County received an annexation request by the City of Richland revising 
the earlier request (the Board requested a boundary review).  He said this was for the Board to 
review the proposed annexation and determine whether the previous concerns were satisfied or 
whether they wanted to file a request for review with the Boundary Review Board for another 
public hearing.   
 
The Planning Department recommended the Board take no action and not file a request with the 
Boundary Review Board.  Chairman Bowman said it appeared to meet the criteria and he saw no 
reason to oppose it.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to accept the Planning Dept. recommendation and take 
no further action on File BRB 11-05.  Commissioner Beaver seconded.   
 
Discussion 
 
Commissioner Beaver said they did what was asked and no further action was needed.  Chairman 
Bowman said he did not see that Benton County had any choice.  Upon vote, the motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:36 a.m.  
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Review 
 
Keith Mercer and Lisa Small presented the newly revised CIP for review and requested direction 
to put together a final version for approval at the next Board meeting.  Mr. Mercer said the goal 
of this project was to make it a working document to be used during the budget process and put 
in projects that could be completed within the next biennium.  However, the departments still 
had to follow policies and procedures in place to get final approval.  
 
Mr. Sparks added that the budget was a two-year budget and the CIP was a six-year document, 
however, this provided information to rating companies that Benton County was planning ahead 
and had sound financial planning practices.  
 
The Board briefly reviewed the CIP and specifically discussed the following projects: 
 
District Court Jury Room Remodel  
 
Commissioner Small said this project had been discussed before and he wanted to complete it 
sooner than later.  Commissioner Beaver said it was important to discuss the project with the 
Clerk’s Office since it would affect her office space as well.  
 



 - 4 - 

Computer Asset Management System (Email) 
 
Mr. Sparks said a committee was reviewing this project to see if the County should implement 
what everyone was currently using or to try and get ahead of the game and use a different format.  
 
Video Conferencing 
 
Commissioner Small said he was in favor of moving ahead (internally and externally) for video 
conferencing and discussed the possibility of a smaller version and later into the full upgrade. 
 
OPTO22/Master Control Operator Station 
 
Commissioner Small said he was skeptical at first about these projects but upon review and 
research he was now in favor.  Chairman Bowman said he didn’t understand the request for the 
new operator station.  He said some departments could not afford to send employees to training 
and now someone wanted to get special treatment.   
 
Mr. Sparks said that Master Control was different due to 12–hour shifts, the need for 24-hour 
monitoring, different size people, and the potential for L & I claims.  He said the County was 
already spending money on ergonomic equipment for clerical employees so that was already 
going on.  Commissioner Beaver said there was an analysis done and it appeared to be part of an 
insurance policy for the County. 
 
Travis Road  
 
Commissioner Small said the County needed to look seriously at this project as it provided 
access for millions of dollars of farm to market product.  Additionally, the County had already 
spent up to $400,000 to keep the road patched. Commissioner Beaver concurred.  
 
The Board approved the Capital Improvement Plan to go forward to the next agenda.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Energy Communities Alliance Conference 
 
Commissioner Beaver reported on his attendance at the ECA Peer Exchange in Washington D.C. 
and said the conference was paid for by ECA.   
 
Yakima River Basin Integrated Water Resource Management Plan   
 
Commissioner Beaver reported on his attendance at this meeting and the draft document plan.  
 
Horse Heaven Irrigation Project Meeting  
 
Commissioner Small said Duane Unland invited him to attend the upcoming meeting and that he 
asked Adam Fyall to join him.  He asked the Commissioners if they had any words of wisdom 



 - 5 - 

before he attended the meeting.  Chairman Bowman said he wanted to know who would be 
championing this project and what it was going to accomplish.  Mr. Sparks said he thought the 
Board sent a letter to Mr. Unland on this subject.  
 
Letter from Energy Northwest 
 
Chairman Bowman asked the Board if it wanted to take an official position on re-licensing of 
Energy Northwest.  The Board agreed and requested Mr. Fyall to draft a letter.  
 
WSAC Request  
 
Chairman Bowman said that WSAC had asked for examples of budget reductions at the local 
level and requested a letter go to the departments asking what sort of cuts had been made in each 
department.  
 
Resolutions 
 
11-588: Authorization to Proceed With Transitional Upgrade of the County Telephony 

Systems 
11-589: Authorization to Purchase Annual Maintenance for Fujitsu Scanners 
11-590: Authorization to Purchase File Folders 
11-591: Payment Authorization for Wireless Canopy Installation @ Fairgrounds    
11-592: Lease Agreement w/Gary Kendall for Annual Angus Auction 
11-593: Transfer of Real Property to Greater Columbia Behavioral Health     
11-594: Grant Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services 
11-595: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504 
11-596: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 504 
11-597: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Dept. 560 
11-598: Contract Amendment w/DSHS Through Juvenile Accountability Block Grant    
11-599: Agreement w/DSHS for Evidence Based Expansion 
11-600: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136   
11-601: Terminating District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins 
11-602: District Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/C Harkins  
11-603: Compensation Authorization for J Celski for Indigent Defense Services 
11-604: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Dept. 000 
11-605: Approval of Short Plat Vacation – SPV 11-02  
11-606: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500 
11-607: Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Kennewick Irrigation District 
11-608: Amending Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District  
11-609: Purchase Authorization for Camera from EyeOn Manufacturing, LLC 
11-610: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 12 



 - 6 - 

 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:40 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     9/27/2011   
Subject:               CIP 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by: K. Mercer     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion  _____ 
Other   _____ 

COMMISSIONERS 
Consent Agenda            

__X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
As per direction from the Board of Benton County Commissioners, attached is the final copy of the 
2011-2016 Capital Improvement Plan to be placed on the Consent Agenda for final adoption.  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve and adopt the attached 2011-2016 Capital Facility Plan 
 
 
 
MOTION 
Move to adopt the 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Plan.  

CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Approval of Final Capital Improvement Plan – 2011- 2016



  

 Benton County, 
                     Washington 

 
Capital Improvement Plan  

              2011-2016 

CurrentUser
Text Box
For a full copy of Capital Improvement Plan, pleasecontact the Commissioners' Office at 509 786-5600 or 509 736-3080



BENTON COUNTY ~ 2011-2016 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

Table of Contents  
 
 

 2

 

B 
 

C 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
     Page 

Capital Improvement Plan Table of Contents.……………………………………………………………………………………. 2  

Adoption Resolution of the 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Plan……………………………………………………….…….. 3 

Board of Benton County Commissioners…………………………………………………………………………………….…….. 4 

County Departments……………….…………………………………………………………………………………………………         5-8 

Introduction……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………         9-13       

Impact of the CIP on the Operating Budget………………………………………….…………………………………………….         14 

Summary by Funding Type …………………………………………………………………………………………………………         15  

Summary of All Capital Projects by Funding Type……………………………………………………………………………….         16-17 

Capital Project Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….         18-31 

Equipment Rental & Revolving Fund (E.R.&R. Fund)……………………………….…………………………………….…….          32 

Fairgrounds Improvement Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………         33 

Jail Depreciation Reserve Fund……………………………………………………………………………………………………..          34-42 

Park Development Fund…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….          43-49 

1/4 Percent Real Estate Excise Tax Fund (R.E.E.T Fund)…………………………………………………………………………          50-53 

Real Estate Excise Tax Technology Fund (R.E.E.T. Technology Fund)…………………………………………………………          54 

Unfunded Source……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…….          55-59 

Glossary……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….          60-65 



 
Return to TOC 

3

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE 2011 - 2016 BENTON COUNTY CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners desires to update the Benton County 
Capital Improvement Plan in conjunction with the biennial Benton County Budget; and  
 
WHEREAS, in past years, this document has been titled the Capital Facility Plan and this year 
the title was changed to Capital Improvement Plan, as additional departments were incorporated 
into the plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Plan is a planning document to be used in setting policy 
and establishing priorities for capital projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Plan shall be adopted as part of the County’s 
budget process and will be amended into the Capital Facilities Element of the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan as allowed under RCW 36.70A.130(2)(a)iii; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby adopts the 
attached 2011-2016 Benton County Capital Improvement Plan.  



CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Appreciation Letters for 9/11 Memorial







CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Canvassing Board Appointment



CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Contract Amendment w/Cascade Fire Protection Co.











 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     9/27/2011   
Subject:    Retainage Release 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by: K. Mercer     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion  _____ 
Other   _____ 

 
FACILITIES 

Consent Agenda            
__X__  

Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Board of Commissioners entered into a construction contract with G2 Commercial Construction, 
Inc. (G2) as the General Contractor for the construction of the Benton County Animal Control 
Facility.  
 
The Contractor had the option to have the County retain their retainage funds in an interest-bearing 
escrow account for the duration of the project.  
 
Per Resolution 11-130 dated February 28, 2011 the Board of Commissioners accepted the Animal 
Control Facility as being substantially complete.  
 
All necessary releases from the Department of Revenue, Department of Employment, and 
Department of Labor & Industries have been received.  
 
Benton County has been holding retainage for some extra time due to the fact that there were some 
mechanical issues going on at the facility.  The subcontractor and general contractor has been 
working on getting these issue resolved.   
 
At this point, all areas of concern have been addressed and the Facilities Supervisor recommends 
releasing the retainage to G2 Commercial Construction, Inc.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The recommendation is to have the Board of Commissioners authorize the release of all retainage 
funds and any interest that is being held in the Escrow Account No. 14011148 to G2 Commercial 
Construction, Inc.  
 
 
 
MOTION 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby moves to authorize Community First Bank, 
Kennewick, WA to release all retained funds from Escrow Account No. 14011148 to G2 Commercial 
Construction Inc., Kennewick, WA.  
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Authorization to Release Retainage Funds to G2 Commercial Construction, Inc.



Orig: Comnrs  Small 
cc:  Auditor; Contract Management; G2 Construction; Community First Bank  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
 Clerk of the Board       
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF RETAINED FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW
ACCOUNT NO. 14011148 TO G2 COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION, INC.  
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 10-345 the Board of Benton County Commissioners authorized the
placement of retainage funds into an interest-bearing escrow account as per the request of G2
Commercial Construction, Inc. in regards to the construction project of the Benton County
Animal Control Facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, the contract has been completed and all required closing documents have been
received; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington
hereby authorizes Community First Bank, Kennewick, WA to release all retained funds of
Escrow Account No. 14011148 to G2 Commercial Construction, Inc., 201 N. Edison Street Ste
227, Kennewick, WA 99336. 
 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Contract w/DSHS, Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery







CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Trainer Contract w/S Perry







CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Certificate of Appreciation





CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Amendment to Collective Bargaining Agreement w/Teamsters Local 839 (Roads)









CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Personal Services Contract w/Mel’s Inter-City Collision for Auto Body Repair







CurrentUser
Text Box
Short Plat Vacation – SPV 11-03 - Shuttleworth



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     9/27/2011   
Subject: Architect Recommendation 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by: LSK     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion  _____ 
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            

_____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Benton County Commissioners Personnel sent out a Request for Qualification (RFQ) for 
Architectural and Engineering Services for the purpose of contracting with an Architect firm for 
routine projects that may come up in the near future.  
 
There were a total of 16 architectural firms that responded to the RFQ and out of those 16 firms, we 
narrowed the list down to five (5) firms to continue into the interview phase.  
 
The interview team consisting of Loretta Smith Kelty, Dean Docken, Malcolm Bowie and Lisa Small 
interviewed the following firms on Wednesday, September 14th at the Justice Center.  
 
Design West Architects, Kennewick, WA 
Brockway * Opfer * Raab * Architecture PLLC, Yakima, WA  
Meier Architecture / Engineering, Kennewick, WA  
ARES Corporation, Richland, WA  
TCF Architecture, Tacoma, WA  
 
After having the opportunity to meet each firm and listening to what each of them have to offer, the 
interview team narrowed the choices down to two (2) firms, which were Design West Architects, 
Kennewick, WA and TCF Architecture, Tacoma, WA.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The team would like to recommend negotiating an “as needed” contract with Design West 
Architects, Kennewick, WA. for small routine projects that may be coming up in the near future to 
give Benton County an opportunity to get to know this firm and their approach with public works 
projects.   
 
 
MOTION 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby agrees with the recommendation and 
authorizes an “as needed” blanket contract to be negotiated and put on the consent agenda at a 
later date for Board signature.  
 
 
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
Discussion of Architectural Firm Recommendation – L Small


	Web Packet 092711.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 092011
	CA - Commissioners a
	0 - CIP Front Cover
	1 - CIP Navigation Tips
	2 - CIP Table of Contents
	3 - CIP Resolution
	4 - Board of Benton County Commissioners
	5 - CIP County Department Introduction
	5a - CIP - Introduction Tab
	6 - CIP Introduction
	7- CIP Operating Impact rev
	8 - CIP Summary rev

	a - CIP Capital Improvement Fund Summary
	aa - CIP Capital Improvement Capital Fund
	b - CIP Capital Improvement Capital Fund

	bb - CIP Capital Improvement ER&R Tab
	c - CIP Capital Improvement ER&R

	cc - CIP Capital Improvement Fairgrounds Tab
	d - CIP Capital Improvement Fairgrounds Improvement Fund

	dd - CIP Capital Improvement Jail Tab
	e - CIP Capital Improvement Jail Depreciation

	ee - CIP Capital Improvement Park Tab
	f - CIP Capital Improvement Park Development

	ff - CIP Capital Improvement REET Tab
	g - CIP Capital Improvement REET Fund

	gg - CIP Capital Improvement REET Technology Tab
	h - CIP Capital Improvement REET Technology

	hh - CIP Capital Improvement Unfunded Tab
	i - CIP Capital Improvement Unfunded

	ii - CIP Glossary Tab
	j - CIP Glossary rev


	CA - Commissioners b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Facilities d
	CA - Facilities e
	CA - Human Services f
	CA - Personnel g
	CA - Planning h
	CA - Pros Atty i
	CA - Sheriff j
	Timed - Arcitect Recommendation
	Timed - Executive Session
	Timed - SPV 11-03



